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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ladies and

          3  gentlemen, if I can have your attention. Welcome to

          4  this Council's session on Finance. My name is

          5  Herbert Berman, I chair the Committee, and we have a

          6  number of items.

          7                 The most extensive item or the most

          8  complex item I should say is 954-A.

          9                 Who is going to testify on 954-A? Is

         10  somebody from the Council Finance Division going to

         11  testify?  I'm sorry, 942-A. My apologies, 942-A.

         12                 Are you going to testify? Okay.

         13                 For the people here on Penn South, we

         14  need a quorum and we just want to get this out of

         15  the way, so be a little patient, then we are going

         16  to do this.

         17                 Would you each identify yourselves,

         18  please?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER: Good

         20  morning. My name is Israel Schupper, Associate

         21  Commissioner for Tax Policy of the Department of

         22  Finance and joining me is Ms. Ellen Hoffman,

         23  Director of Legal Affairs.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Would you kind of

         25  like bring the mics closer to you, okay?
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:

          3  Okay. My thanks to Chairman Berman and the members

          4  of the Committee for giving us the opportunity to

          5  speak to you this morning regarding Intro. 942-A.

          6                 On June 28th, we appeared before the

          7  Committee to testify in support of Intro. 942. This

          8  bill was the product of a project begun two years

          9  ago by the Department of Finance to enhance

         10  consistency between state and city business income

         11  taxes in the procedural and administrative

         12  provisions of our respective tax laws.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Izzy, may I stop

         14  you for just a moment?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:

         16  Absolutely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, effectively,

         18  this legislation is designed to cause our tax laws

         19  to be in conformity with the state tax laws?

         20                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:

         21  That's correct. On the technical administrative

         22  provisions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, there is no

         24  substantive change, nothing that would change the

         25  percentages or the liabilities or the
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          2  responsibilities?

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER: No,

          4  this would not change our revenue, it would not

          5  change liabilities, but what it would do is simplify

          6  the tax code, make it easier for taxpayers to

          7  understand because it would conform, and it would

          8  certainly, as I was about to say, basically

          9  eliminate or prevent taxpayers from falling into

         10  traps and being assessed additional interest and

         11  penalties for no good reason.

         12                 The aim basically, our aim was to

         13  simplify the tax code and prevent taxpayers from

         14  falling into traps, having to pay additional

         15  assessments with interest and penalties as a result

         16  of an innocent mistake.

         17                 Since the last hearing the bill has

         18  been amended to correct for certain drafting errors

         19  that were substantively discovered by your staff,

         20  Chairman, and who deserve special thanks. My thanks

         21  to Jim Carey for finding the drafting error.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Does that mean we

         23  have to give him a salary increase?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:

         25  That's I guess between you and him. I don't want to
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          2  get involved in that part.

          3                 In my original comments to the

          4  Committee, I noted that the bill conforms various

          5  provisions to the City's general corporation tax,

          6  and banking corporation tax to the respective

          7  sections of the State tax laws.

          8                 In fact, the original bill omitted

          9  the corresponding changes to the bank tax in two

         10  areas.

         11                 First, Intro. 942, increased the time

         12  that combined groups are given to report to the City

         13  changes in federal, state tax adjustments from 90

         14  days to 120 days. In other words, a combined group

         15  which refers to a tax return containing related

         16  companies, such as a parent company and

         17  subsidiaries, given a little bit more time to file

         18  adjustments to their tax liability that they get

         19  from the federal and state governments. It's a

         20  complicated return. The state gives them 120 days,

         21  we only give them 90 days.

         22                 The original bill included an

         23  amendment to the general corporation tax, but did

         24  not make the change to the bank tax.

         25                 Secondly, the bill adopted the state
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          2  calculation of the first installment of estimated

          3  taxes paid under the General Corporation Tax, but

          4  did not include a similar amendment to the bank tax.

          5                 Now, this second one is certainly

          6  very important for small businesses, because small

          7  businesses have to pay estimated taxes on their

          8  general corporation tax, and this would basically

          9  even out the estimated taxes that they pay over the

         10  year.

         11                 What was happening was that taxpayers

         12  paid a higher amount in the first installment of

         13  estimated taxes, which they didn't have to pay. We

         14  were going to even it out and balance it out, sort

         15  of like balanced payments on your utility bill, and

         16  make it easier for people to pay.

         17                 These provisions have been corrected

         18  in Intro. 942-A that is before you today. It should

         19  be noted that taxpayers, when filing City tax

         20  returns, often follow many of the state provisions

         21  that we are seeking to conform to in this bill.

         22                 As such, the bill does not have a

         23  revenue impact. We are merely trying to make life a

         24  little easier for taxpayers, by periodically

         25  updating the mechanics of our tax structure.
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          2                 The bill has received the support of

          3  the New York State Bar Association, and the

          4  Commissioner's Tax Advisory Committee. I therefore

          5  respectfully ask the Committee and Chairman for a

          6  favorable decision on this bill.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you. We

          8  have to be careful because if we start doing too

          9  many things that make it easier for the City of New

         10  York, it may become contagious.

         11                 Anyhow, are there any questions?

         12                 There being no questions, then I

         13  thank both of you for your testimony.

         14                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:

         15  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Your testimony

         17  was stimulating.

         18                 All right, we're going to do two Land

         19  Use items.

         20                 Is anyone here to testify from the

         21  Council Finance Division?

         22                 Good morning, gentlemen.

         23                 MR. BRUNO: Good morning.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You're both very

         25  nicely color coordinated today.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 MR. BRUNO: Thank you, Councilman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: But I notice that

          4  you're sitting widely separated.

          5                 MR. BRUNO: There are differences

          6  between us, but we minimize them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Certainly

          8  geographically.

          9                 Would you each identify yourselves.

         10                 MR. BRUNO: We are somewhat short

         11  staffed today.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Would you each

         13  identify yourselves.

         14                 MR. RIVETTI: Carmine Rivette, City

         15  Council Finance.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Carmine, hi.

         17                 MR. BRUNO: I'm Peter Bruno, City

         18  Council Finance Division.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, we have

         20  before us several items on Land Use column.  Let's

         21  see, we have a preconsidered Section 202 supportive

         22  housing, High Bridge Community, HDFC, on Shakespeare

         23  Avenue in Council Member Foster's district. One

         24  building, 78 units. It's a 40-year exemption. Total

         25  40-year exemption of 1,480,000; is that correct,
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          2  sir?

          3                 MR. BRUNO: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Is there anything

          5  that I left out on that?

          6                 MR. BRUNO: No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, any

          8  questions?

          9                 Mr. Foster I assume has agreed to

         10  this?

         11                 MR. BRUNO: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Next is Land Use

         13  943, also a Section 202, at Hunt Point's

         14  multi-service center on Concord Avenue in the Bronx.

         15  Council Member Espada's district. One building, 74

         16  units. Likewise, a 40-year abatement, for 1,400,000.

         17                 Is there anything that I've omitted,

         18  sir?

         19                 MR. BRUNO: No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And Council

         21  Member Espada is in accord with this abatement?

         22                 MR. BRUNO: Yes, he is.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Next we have a

         24  preconsidered Neighborhood Homes Program, through

         25  the South Bronx Community Management Company.
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          2                 It's obviously a variety of different

          3  locations, but all located in Council Member

          4  Espada's district in the Bronx. Eleven buildings, 33

          5  units, so I assume they are three-family houses?

          6                 MR. BRUNO: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And it's a

          8  ten-year abatement, a total ten-year abatement

          9  amount of 234,000; is that correct?

         10                 MR. BRUNO: Yes, it is.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And Council

         12  Member Espada is in accord?

         13                 MR. BRUNO: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Next we have Penn

         15  South, which I guess we will do on a separate item.

         16                 MR. BRUNO: Right, we could go ahead.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We won't vote for

         18  this yet, but Penn South, it's an Article 5 Penn

         19  South Mutual Redevelopment Houses. That's in

         20  Manhattan in Council Member Quinn's district. Ten

         21  buildings, 2,820 units. A 21-year exemption. The

         22  total 20-year exemption is $209,093,826; is that

         23  correct?

         24                 MR. BRUNO: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's got to end
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          2  up being one of the biggest ones we've ever done.

          3                 MR. BRUNO: That's correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And, finally,

          5  there is permanent housing for the Homeless Families

          6  Program in the Bronx, in Council Member Foster's

          7  district.

          8                 Now, this I don't understand, it says

          9  one building 40-50 units. What does that mean? That

         10  means that it's an option?

         11                 MR. BRUNO: This is a project not

         12  quite like any that we've done before in this City.

         13  It's called the 85/85 Program, and this is the sixth

         14  and final phase of a program spanning over, since

         15  the Koch Administration actually, whereby the City

         16  and the State contribute an equal amount of capital

         17  dollars to provide homeless families with permanent

         18  housing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: No, I just don't

         20  understand --

         21                 MR. BRUNO: And that range,

         22  Councilman, is from 40 to 50, that's the anticipated

         23  hope of families that will be --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Oh. So, in other

         25  words, it's not -- they haven't concluded yet how
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          2  many they are going to --

          3                 MR. BRUNO: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

          5                 And therefore, as a consequence to

          6  that we don't know what the exemption amount will

          7  be.

          8                 MR. BRUNO: Well, the exemption is not

          9  before us. What's before us today is basically the

         10  go-ahead for the City to contribute to capital

         11  dollars.

         12                 This will go through a fuller process

         13  and be revisited later. There is no exemption today

         14  on this.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         16                 Now, excluding the preconsidered

         17  article 5 Penn South item, because we're having

         18  considerable other testimony on that issue, are

         19  there any questions on the other four items?

         20                 If there be no other questions, fine.

         21                 Thank you very much, gentlemen.

         22                 MR. BRUNO: You're welcome.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay. I'd like to

         24  now proceed to the article 5 Penn South exemption

         25  that's before us.
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          2                 I'm pleased to indicate we've been

          3  joined by Speaker Vallone.

          4                 Welcome, Mr. Speaker.

          5                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Welcome, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, ladies

          8  and gentlemen, as I indicated, we have before us an

          9  exemption on behalf of Penn South. It's a

         10  preconsidered item that's before us, and it's part

         11  of the Land Use package that you just went through.

         12                 These are properties located from

         13  23rd to 29th Street, between 8th and 9th Avenue in

         14  Manhattan. They are all located in Council Member

         15  Quinn's district. There are ten buildings, 2,820

         16  units. It's a 21-year exemption. The first year

         17  exemption is $1,364,483.  The total 21-year

         18  exemption is $209,093,826.

         19                 As I indicated, this has to be one of

         20  the largest ones that this Committee has done. So,

         21  it's an interesting process.

         22                 So, the first people before us now --

         23  by the way, Assemblyman Richard Gottfried was here

         24  earlier, and testified -- well, he told me he would

         25  testify on behalf of the issue, he had to leave for
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          2  another appointment, but we will acknowledge the

          3  fact that he was here and had he been here now, he

          4  would have testified in support of the issue.

          5                 All right. So, now we have Walter

          6  Mankoff. Brendan Keany. And Ezra Goodman.

          7                 All right, Mr. Mankoff.

          8                 MR. MANKOFF: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          9  and members of the Committee. My name is Walter

         10  Mankoff, the treasurer of Mutual Redevelopment

         11  Houses, and as you indicated, a 2,820 unit housing

         12  development in the Chelsea area of Manhattan, more

         13  popularly known as Penn South. And I'm accompanied

         14  today by our general manager Brendan Keany, and our

         15  Counsel, Ezra Goodman.

         16                 Before I continue, let me add,

         17  Assemblyman Gottfried, who is our Assemblyman, was

         18  the sponsor of the necessary enabling legislation

         19  under the State Assembly and played a key role in

         20  its passage, and he would have been here in our

         21  support, as you indicated, and we do thank him for

         22  his help.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And appropriately

         24  so.

         25                 MR. MANKOFF: We're seeking the
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          2  approval of your Committee and the Council for an

          3  amendment of our contract with the City that would

          4  modify the way in which our real estate taxes are

          5  calculated.

          6                 The modification is the result of

          7  nearly two years of work by the City's Department of

          8  Housing, Preservation and Development.

          9                 State enabling legislation was

         10  required, and the provisions were reviewed by

         11  numerous City agencies, including the Office of the

         12  Mayor, the Comptroller, the Law and Finance

         13  Departments, en route to becoming a City program

         14  bill.

         15                 Governor Pataki signed the bill into

         16  law on August 9th.

         17                 To put our request into proper

         18  perspective, a bit of history is needed.

         19                 Penn South is a limited equity co-op

         20  organized under New York State's redevelopment

         21  companies law. It opened in 1962. In exchange for a

         22  subsidy for the purchase of land and granting 20

         23  years of tax abatement, later extended to 25, the

         24  co-op entered into a contract with the City of New

         25  York that provided, among other things, income
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          2  limits, surcharges, controlled resale prices and

          3  occupancy standards.

          4                 In 1987 we signed a second 25-year

          5  contract with the City, providing for a gradual

          6  phase-in of full taxes by 2012.

          7                 At that time the phase-in formula

          8  seemed to provide for an affordable level of real

          9  estate taxes, even with the allowance for moderate

         10  increases in the value of our property.

         11                 At all times affordability of our

         12  apartments has been a matter of prime concern to us,

         13  given our demographics.

         14                 Our most recent data show that 60

         15  percent of our household heads are 65 and older,

         16  with 39 percent aged 75 percent or more.

         17                 Many of our retirees live on fixed

         18  incomes. And in general, Penn South incomes are very

         19  modest.

         20                 In 1999, 56 percent of our families

         21  of all ages, had gross income under $40,000, and

         22  nearly a third of our families had incomes under

         23  $20,000.

         24                 Penn South is relatively unique among

         25  limited equity housing developments in how its real
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          2  estate taxes are calculated.

          3                 Most limited equity developments were

          4  organized under the Mitchell Lama Law, and their

          5  real estate taxes are calculated as a percentage of

          6  something called shelter rent.

          7                 Simply put, shelter rent is the gross

          8  income of the development less the cost of

          9  utilities.

         10                 The shelter rent formula isolates the

         11  housing from the impact of rising neighborhood

         12  property values, as well as changes in tax rates.

         13                 In our case, even though we are now

         14  partially exempt, we pay taxes based on changing

         15  assessed value and are subject to tax rate changes,

         16  as well.

         17                 In 1987, when our contract was

         18  renewed, the City projected that Penn South taxes

         19  would be subject to an annual increase and assessed

         20  value of 2.4 percent a year, and that tax rates

         21  would not change.

         22                 These estimated led the parties to

         23  believe the contract formula would be affordable for

         24  our low and moderate income families.

         25                 However, 14 years later, it is clear
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          2  that the facts have outrun the assumptions. None of

          3  us knew in 1987 that Chelsea would become one of the

          4  hottest real estate areas in the City, with Penn

          5  South being surrounded by art galleries and luxury

          6  apartment houses.

          7                 Increasingly our assessed value, and

          8  our taxes, have reflected our booming neighborhoods,

          9  rather than the characteristics of our co-op.

         10                 Our assessed value does not take into

         11  account that the resale prices of our apartments are

         12  severely limited by law. Nor does it take into

         13  account low incomes of a large number of residents.

         14                 Were we to continue the phase-in

         15  process called for by our existing contracts,

         16  apartments would soon become unaffordable, to a

         17  large number of our present residents.

         18                 A few numbers may help explain why we

         19  sought help from this City. From tax year 86/87 from

         20  99/2000, our original assessed value before

         21  exemption increased a total of 61 percent, or an

         22  average of 3.7 percent a year.

         23                 And in recent years the increases

         24  have been much larger.

         25                 Last year it increased seven percent.
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          2  This year it increased another seven percent.

          3                 In addition, the tax rate has

          4  increased about 20 percent in this time, compounding

          5  the growth in assessed value.

          6                 Our current taxes thus exceed by far

          7  the projections made in 1987. We cannot help be

          8  concerned over the future impact if these trends

          9  continue.

         10                 Fortunately, HPD and the other City

         11  agencies recognized the financial predicament Penn

         12  South residents were facing, if we continued on our

         13  present path. The result is the contract amendment

         14  before the Council today. It's a simple proposal.

         15                 Instead of continuing phase-in of

         16  taxes based on assessment on the residential portion

         17  of our property per the present contract, Penn South

         18  will pay taxes at either the greater of ten percent

         19  of shelter rent, residential shelter rent, or the

         20  residential tax paid in Year 2000/2001.

         21                 Our contract with the City is

         22  extended ten years, and will expire in 2022, instead

         23  of 2012.

         24                 I might add, the State Constitution

         25  limits tax benefits for housing to a total of 60
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          2  years, and that is why we had to end it in 2022.

          3                 As we've done for many years, we will

          4  continue to pay full tax on the portion of our

          5  property used for commercial purposes, and I might

          6  add that that has become a very substantial amount.

          7  This year we're paying close to $900,000 in tax on

          8  that portion of the property alone.

          9                 The proposed change is supported by a

         10  substantial majority of Penn South cooperators. In a

         11  referendum held this April, 74 percent of our

         12  households voted and 70 percent of those who voted

         13  supported the shift to shelter rent and the

         14  extension of the contract.

         15                 This amendment helps ensure the

         16  continued existence of affordable housing for low-

         17  and moderate-income families in New York, we urge

         18  you to approve the change in our contract.

         19                 Thank you, and we're available to

         20  answer any questions, if you should have them.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I assume that you

         22  gave the testimony for the three of you; is that

         23  accurate?

         24                 MR. MANKOFF: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right.
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          2                 So, then there was a vote of the

          3  tenants for the --

          4                 MR. MANKOFF: Cooperators, yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Cooperators, I'm

          6  sorry.

          7                 And, as you indicated, 70 percent of

          8  those voting voted to remain as is and not to go

          9  private; is that correct?

         10                 MR. MANKOFF: Right. Exactly.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         12                 Are there any questions?

         13                 We have other witnesses to testify.

         14                 Mr. Spigner.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes, by this

         16  vote today, Mr. Chairman, this will continue the

         17  relationship between the City through it's agency

         18  HPD in terms of its supervisory and oversight

         19  responsibilities and reporting requirements and all

         20  of those other measures that now exist?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: As I understand,

         22  there is an agreement that you enter into with the

         23  City that provides for that; is that correct?

         24                 MR. KEANY: That is correct, yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And as it
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          2  relates to the succession rights to the apartments,

          3  as that currently exist will remain in place?

          4                 MR. MANKOFF: That is correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER which is also

          6  a responsibility of HPD to oversee?

          7                 MR. MANKOFF: That is correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And the

          9  application process, background and all of the other

         10  measures that are now in place to ensure fairness

         11  and accuracy, will all remain in place?

         12                 MR. MANKOFF: Yes. Everything will

         13  remain as it has in our prior contract, with the

         14  exception of the tax provision.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER because there

         16  are always those who complain, you were talking

         17  about 30 percent, which is while considered a

         18  landslide, it's still a large number of people that

         19  have an opposing view on this measure.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: May I stress that

         22  it's not 30 percent of the total membership, but 30

         23  percent of those that voted. Seventy-four percent of

         24  the total membership voted; is that correct?

         25                 MR. MANKOFF: That's correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So this is 70

          3  percent, 74 percent. If you want to reduce that to

          4  numbers, you are in the wrong committee.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Well, those

          6  that don't vote, Mr. Chairman, as you well know, I

          7  hope they would have voted for the other guy and not

          8  me.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         10                 Mr. Rodriguez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I just have

         12  two short questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I didn't hear

         14  you, sir.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I just have

         16  two short questions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The first

         19  question is, what is your current tax rate? You're

         20  saying that the proposal is ten percent of the

         21  shelter rent?

         22                 MR. MANKOFF: We're paying somewhere's

         23  close to 20 percent currently, and we're only half

         24  phased in under the present contract, so if it

         25  continued at the present rate, you can see where we
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          2  would be heading.

          3                 We're nearly up to 20 percent of our

          4  shelter rent.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, now

          6  you're paying 20 percent of your shelter rent and

          7  you're saying that it should be ten percent?

          8                 MR. MANKOFF: No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         10                 MR. MANKOFF: No. We're locked in at a

         11  floor of our present tax which is $3.5 million. Our

         12  residential tax last year was $3.5 million, that is

         13  locked in as a floor. We can't go below that.

         14                 Once shelter rent tax exceeds $3.5

         15  million on the residential part of the property, our

         16  tax will increase.

         17                 On the same time, however, the

         18  commercial part, which is on full tax, is increasing

         19  rapidly, as I indicated. It went from 500,000 to

         20  800,000 in one year. And that will continue going up

         21  throughout this period.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. And I

         23  don't know if this question is for you or for the

         24  Chairman, but it says that for one year it's $1.3

         25  million, and somehow that becomes $200 million in 20
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          2  years, and I don't --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: What we do when

          4  we give this breakdown is we tell the Committee

          5  whether it will cost the City in taxes. In other

          6  words, we're giving up. That's the amount that will

          7  be exempted. The first year it will be 1 million --

          8  I don't even remember what it is.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And

         10  300,000.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: But the total

         12  21-year amount rises to 209 million.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That's what

         14  I don't understand.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Because it goes

         16  progressively up.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Eventually

         18  it goes up. Is that what you're --

         19                 MR. MANKOFF: I would assume that what

         20  has happened is that a reasonable assumption on

         21  increased and assessed value has been taken into

         22  account and, therefore, as well as our phase-in, and

         23  therefore, the amount of tax that is being abated is

         24  a long-range projection, assuming we used three

         25  percent when we did our arithmetic, it may be going
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          2  up faster. Chelsea may change completely in five

          3  years, and going down, I don't know.

          4                 The 209 million is a projection based

          5  on assumption on changes in assessed value. It's a

          6  reasonable one we've used.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. So,

          8  your current tax is 3.5 million?

          9                 MR. MANKOFF: On the residential part,

         10  and 800,000 this year on the commercial part, which

         11  would be a grand total of 4.3.

         12                 If we don't get the amendment, we

         13  will be up to 4.8.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         17                 All right, Al. Mr. Stabile.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: My question

         19  is basically on the tenants itself. On the

         20  application that Archie has brought out, what is the

         21  qualifications to rent an apartment here?

         22                 I was informed by my colleague that

         23  it was built by the Ladies Garment Workers many

         24  years ago?

         25                 MR. MANKOFF: The union was the
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          2  sponsor 40 years ago for the construction of the

          3  apartment.

          4                 The only requirement is that you be

          5  on the waiting list, which is open when the City

          6  permits us to open it, to every resident of New York

          7  State.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

          9                 MR. MANKOFF: And we choose in

         10  sequence from the waiting list, there is an income

         11  limit, you're not allowed to earn more than a

         12  certain amount --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: What is that

         14  amount? What is that amount, sir?

         15                 MR. MANKOFF: Well, the present

         16  formula is approximately eight times the rent,

         17  annual rent on the apartment, with the provision

         18  that if you're over income, up to 50 percent you can

         19  come in but you pay a surcharge from day one.

         20                 So, if you're 150 percent over the

         21  level, you would be paying a 50 percent surcharge

         22  from day one.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, so the

         24  average rent let's say is for a two-bedroom?

         25                 MR. MANKOFF: Currently?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

          3                 MR. MANKOFF: We will be glad to tell

          4  you what the number is.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Al, instead of

          6  taking the time of the Committee, is that

          7  information that you would accept --

          8                 MR. MANKOFF: Here. No, I have the

          9  numbers.

         10                 Average is $689 a month, carrying

         11  charge.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

         13                 MR. MANKOFF: For a two-bedroom

         14  apartment.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: And what do

         16  they pay for that apartment?

         17                 MR. MANKOFF: What?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: And what will

         19  they pay for that apartment?

         20                 MR. MANKOFF: Pay for that apartment?

         21  Paying about --

         22                 MR. KEANY: Approximately $13,000.

         23                 MR. MANKOFF: About $13,000. And

         24  that's what it would sell for. On the open market it

         25  would probably go for $300,000 or more. That's how
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          2  severely limited the resale price is at the current

          3  time.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Very

          5  interesting.

          6                 MR. MANKOFF: And the only other

          7  requirement is by City rule, you must have an income

          8  of at least four times the annual rent. That's our

          9  requirement. They don't have to have been a union

         10  member or have any other qualifications.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: How often is

         12  the list actually given out, the applications?

         13                 MR. KEANY: We have only ever opened

         14  it once.

         15                 MR. MANKOFF: Our lists were closed in

         16  '86, at order from HPD. They were reopened -- two

         17  of our lists for two-bedrooms and for studios were

         18  reopened about three years ago, three to four years

         19  ago, and I think we had something like 20,000

         20  applications, and they were all numbered with City

         21  supervision, and were calling people in from that

         22  list. I don't know if we reject for any reason

         23  whatsoever one in a thousand a year, or maybe not

         24  even that. It's very rare that anybody gets

         25  rejected. We don't interview applications like a
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          2  private co-op does. Next on the list you have the

          3  income requirement, you get an apartment, it's as

          4  simple as that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 MR. MANKOFF: Thank you. Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Speaker Vallone.

          9                 SPEAKER VALLONE: I would have liked

         10  to wait for Dave, but I want to compliment all of

         11  you, because this is a classic example that can only

         12  happen in New York City.

         13                 Here's a situation where owners could

         14  make profits to the extent that you said, $13,000 to

         15  $300,000, I think it's even higher than that in New

         16  York City.

         17                 On the other hand, they voted to keep

         18  these units affordable so that not only can they

         19  keep them but others who can afford them can keep

         20  them. That's one of the noblest and nicest things

         21  that I think has been done in our City. And it's

         22  certainly the kind of thing that I, and I know my

         23  colleagues, will fully support.

         24                 I just wanted to let you know that.

         25                 MR. MANKOFF: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Speaker.

          4                 MR. MANKOFF: The Council Members have

          5  always been very supportive of us and our attempts

          6  to maintain affordable housing.

          7                 We appreciate the sentiments of the

          8  Speaker and his --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Mankoff, in

         10  no way do we want to inhibit applause or praise.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: May I say

         12  just one sentence?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I know the

         15  history of these buildings, it's not in my district,

         16  I've been in the Council now for, this is my 24th

         17  year, I remember, you come in, you pay the rent

         18  early, this has been an exemplary housing

         19  development, for me as a member of the Housing and

         20  Buildings Committee to say that is a housing

         21  development, because I'm usually knocking the

         22  housing developments, but this happens to be a

         23  magnificent development, the people living in it are

         24  magnificent people, and I pay high compliments, and

         25  anything we can do to help and sustain this type of
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          2  housing we should be doing, and, therefore, I will

          3  be supporting this.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Michels.

          6                 MR. MANKOFF: Thank you.

          7                 MR. KEANY: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, thank

          9  you very much, gentlemen.

         10                 MR. MANKOFF: Okay, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, I don't

         12  know as to whether or not the next three people

         13  actually physically want to testify, but if you just

         14  merely want to verbalize your consent or assent,

         15  that's fine.

         16                 Maarten deKadt.

         17                 MR. DEKADT: I verbalize consent, sir.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

         19  DeKadt.

         20                 My privilege to accept the brevity of

         21  your statement.

         22                 Shirley Littman.

         23                 MS. LITTMAN: The same.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: The same? Thank

         25  you, Ms. Littman, you're a classy person.
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          2                 Rosalie Regal.

          3                 MS. REGAL: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: The same thing.

          5  Thank you very much.

          6                 Okay, may I now call Senator Tom

          7  Duane. And David Smith, you might as well go up

          8  also, okay?

          9                 SENATOR DUANE: Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Senator, would

         11  you identify yourself, please.

         12                 SENATOR DUANE: State Senator Tom

         13  Duane, and a proud cooperator.

         14                 As the enabling legislation moved

         15  through the Senate I was not really allowed to

         16  participate because allegedly I had pecuniary

         17  interest in it, in the legislation, although I tried

         18  to explain to people that actually if it didn't

         19  pass, I could potentially make a lot of money by the

         20  apartment going off in the private market.

         21                 But I, along with the vast majority

         22  of cooperators, voted to keep our development

         23  affordable. And you heard, I think Walter explained

         24  the history and why we're here today, but let me

         25  just say that as a result of that vote, I continue

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  to believe that I represent the most wonderful

          3  people in the entire world, that they voted to

          4  protect the ability of their neighbors to stay in

          5  their homes and to make it so that the next

          6  generation will have a chance at living in

          7  affordable housing, and as part of the cooperative

          8  movement, which if we had a few more of those it

          9  would certainly go a long way toward solving our

         10  housing crisis in this City.

         11                 But I'm a proud cooperator, I was on

         12  the list for 16 years. Everybody would say, you

         13  don't have any pull? Well, whether I had pull or

         14  not, they do it by the book. People get called in

         15  order, and it's an incredibly fair way to do it, and

         16  from top to bottom. I live in a really well managed,

         17  well run democratic co-op, and as they say, people

         18  don't move out of Penn South, they get carried out,

         19  and that's what's going to happen with me.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you,

         22  Senator.

         23                 By the way, I'd be delighted to

         24  introduce you to Council Member Quinn, she seems to

         25  have some pull in the community here.
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          2                 SENATOR DUANE: You know, I've heard a

          3  lot of things about her, mostly good.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: She's also a

          5  constituent.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, next. Dave,

          7  you're kind of a legend here. You're certainly the

          8  quintessential grand-daddy of affordable housing.

          9  So, I welcome you here, I thank you for coming down,

         10  and I will ask you to identify yourself and share

         11  with us your points on the subject.

         12                 MR. SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         13                 I was president of Penn South for 20

         14  years, and Chairman of the Board for five, and in

         15  1986 and 7, when we were faced with the proposition

         16  of going private or remaining a limited equity

         17  cooperative, Penn South voted, and we voted

         18  overwhelmingly as we did just this year in April to

         19  remain.

         20                 Now, in this day of greed and

         21  selfishness, it's quite remarkable, 75 percent of

         22  the people coming out to vote, which is a tremendous

         23  number, I think of any housing company that you can

         24  think of having that many people coming to vote, and

         25  70 percent voting to remain a limited equity
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          2  non-profit co-op.

          3                 So, in this day and age, this is an

          4  example to the entire City, we're proud of the

          5  record at Penn South.

          6                 As you heard one of your Council

          7  people tell that for 20 years we paid our real

          8  estate taxes and did not accept the eight percent

          9  discount that we're entitled to.

         10                 Now, there wasn't a treasury of the

         11  co-op to pay it, but cooperators were asked to pay

         12  their June rent and January, so that we can prepay

         13  the real estate taxes. Some of the cooperators

         14  couldn't afford to take money out to prepay in

         15  advance, so they went to the credit union to get a

         16  loan to participate in this program.

         17                 We're the only cooperative in this

         18  City that has maintained paying the HPD and the City

         19  25 percent of our surcharges, all the other

         20  cooperatives are out of the program to collect 100

         21  percent and keep 100 percent, but we maintain that

         22  we should continue paying the City as our sense of

         23  responsibility.

         24                 So, that's the kind of cooperative

         25  you have, and we urge you to vote for this bill, to
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          2  keep it a minimum, a cooperative that is affordable.

          3  And we thank you for your vote on that.

          4                 Thank you, sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Smith.

          7                 Senator, thank you. And I'm glad that

          8  you finally got some place to live.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 Okay, if there be no other questions

         11  now, we can proceed to the final item of business on

         12  our agenda, which as soon as I find it, I will be

         13  delighted to call it.

         14                 Parks Department. This is a

         15  resolution improving applications by the City Parks

         16  Department. The State Assistance Payments for 20

         17  projects. These projects fall under the categories

         18  of municipal parks projects, local waterfront

         19  revitalization projects and/or Hudson River Estuary

         20  projects.

         21                 Do you guys want to identify

         22  yourselves?

         23                 MR. LAIRD: Good morning. My name is

         24  Joshua Laird. I'm Chief of Planning for the City

         25  Parks Department.
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          2                 MS. CROWLEY: And I'm Elaine Crowley,

          3  the Grants Manager for the City of New York Parks

          4  Department.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I can't hear you.

          6  Put the machine on.

          7                 MS. CROWLEY: Elaine Crowley. Also

          8  with the City of New York Parks and Recreation,

          9  Grants Manager in the Planning Division.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 So, this is nothing different than

         13  the other items that we've done from time to time in

         14  the past; is that correct?

         15                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right. So

         17  that, let's see, we have Citywide Projects -- I'm

         18  just going to go through them quickly. Forever Wild,

         19  which is an education program.

         20                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: With ecology,

         22  right?

         23                 MR. LAIRD: Correct. It protects areas

         24  of the parks system that have the highest habitat

         25  value for plants, for animals, birds, so forth.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Another Citywide

          3  program is the Citywide Waterfront Education

          4  Program, and mobile nature centers, which will

          5  provide grants to the urban park rangers to run

          6  traveling nature centers, correct?

          7                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Then we have a

          9  program to train student organizers to do coastal

         10  restoration projects.

         11                 MR. LAIRD: We will be withdrawing

         12  that application.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's withdrawn?

         14                 MR. LAIRD: That is being withdrawn.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay. That's the

         16  coastal restoration projects.

         17                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And then the

         19  purchase of a patrol vessel to patrol the Hudson

         20  River Estuary waters, and islands, and to be used

         21  for safety patrols during recreational programs

         22  offered by the City Parks Department.

         23                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         25                 In the Bronx we have improvements to
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          2  the connections between Bronx Park and Shoe Lace

          3  Park along the Bronx River.

          4                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We also have the

          6  enhancements of the waterfront access along the

          7  Bronx River through Shoe Lace Park and the Bronx

          8  River Parkway.

          9                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Also in the

         11  Bronx, development of a waterfront park at Berado

         12  Point Park, in the Hunt's Point community.

         13                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: A project to

         15  prevent erosion of the slopes of Riverdale Park and

         16  prevent pollution of Alderbrook (phonetic).

         17                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Brooklyn

         19  projects. The conduct of an engineering study for

         20  the bulkhead and upland portions of the WNYC Park.

         21                 MR. LAIRD: Correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Someone wants to

         23  know what that means.

         24                 MR. LAIRD: We will be doing the

         25  master plan and feasibility study for the former
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          2  WNYC transmitter site in Brooklyn on the waterfront.

          3  There are serious problems with sink holes, we know

          4  that the bulkhead is collapsing into the river, into

          5  the East River.

          6                 We also have some questions about the

          7  future of the transmitter towers themselves, how we

          8  could open up the site for public access safely. So,

          9  the study will answer those questions and will put,

         10  we hope, a real dollar on the development cost for a

         11  park there.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, thank

         13  you.

         14                 Now, actually, folks, if you just

         15  look at page four of the report.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I know I'm

         17  getting old, but can you tell me where this happens

         18  to be in Brooklyn? Those of us who live there --

         19                 MR. LAIRD: It's at the foot of Kent

         20  Street on the East River in Greenpoint.

         21                 It's actually very visible because it

         22  has the two former transmitter towers when WNYC was

         23  there. It is immediately south of India Street where

         24  there was an informal access point pier that

         25  collapsed tragically a couple of years ago.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You're welcome.

          4                 All right, now, folks, if you're

          5  looking at page four, you can go over the Manhattan

          6  projects, Queens projects, and Staten Island

          7  projects.

          8                 So, I'll give you a moment to do

          9  that, and then if there are any questions, if not,

         10  we can proceed to a vote.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Berman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Wait. Wait. Wait.

         13                 Are there any questions?

         14                 If there be no questions, now we're

         15  going to have a combined vote.

         16                 Thank you very much, folks.

         17                 MR. LAIRD: Sure. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Of 942-A, I

         19  believe, of 2001; Preconsidered Resolution for the

         20  parks that we just went over; the Section 202

         21  Supportive Housing Program for the Elderly, that's

         22  943; Land Use 1148; Land Use for the Penn South

         23  projects; Land Use for the Section 202 Supportive

         24  Housing Program for the Bronx, Shakespeare Senior

         25  Housing; and Land Use Neighborhood Homes Program on
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          2  East 133rd Street, Kelly Street, Ewitt Place, Urban

          3  Street, Interval Avenue, Longfellow Avenue, Simpson

          4  Street, Fox Street and Bronx Community Districts

          5  number 1 and 2; Council District 17 and 18.

          6                 So, combining that, may we have a

          7  roll call, please.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Berman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Let me again

         10  congratulate the residents, the cooperatives of Penn

         11  South. I think you've done an extraordinary job, and

         12  I think you set an example for people in this City

         13  to follow and to emulate certainly with regard to

         14  the necessity of affordable housing.

         15                 So, thank you, and congratulations,

         16  and I'm pleased to vote aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Spigner.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Michels.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Somebody get Mr.

         23  Michels, please.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koslowitz.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Aye.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Eisland.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: With

          4  extraordinary respect for David Smith, I vote aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Michels.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Wooten.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Robles.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rodriguez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stabile.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Aye.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Before you

         16  announce the vote, Mr. Dear is in the building, as

         17  is Mr. McCaffrey, so we will hold the vote open for

         18  the two of them, but having heard the votes so far,

         19  what is the vote?

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at ten

         21  in the affirmative, none in the negative and no

         22  abstentions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That means the

         24  items passed, it will go to the full Council.

         25                 Mr. O'Donovan.
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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: O'Donovan.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: Aye.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's 11 in the

          5  affirmative.

          6                 Congratulations. The hearing is

          7  adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 12:05 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 22nd day of August 2001.
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         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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